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10/7/2025 2:02 PM
Heidi Percy
County Clerk
Snohomish County, WASH
Case Number: 25-2-10070-31

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON
IN AND FOR THE COUNTY OF SNOHOMISH

CASSAUNDRAMAXWELL,
aresidentoftheStateofWashington,

onherownbehalfandonbehalfof
allotherssimilarlysituated,

Plaintiff,
V.
ULTASALON,COSMETICS&

FRAGRANCE,INC.,acorporationorganized
underthelawsoftheStateofDelaware.

Serve on:
CORPORATIONSERVICECOMPANY
300DESCHUTESWAYSWSTE208MC-CSC1,
TUMWATER,WA98501

Defendant.

JURY TRIAL REQUESTED

25-2-10070-31
CaseNo.
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CLASS ACTION COMPLAINT

I PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

1. Thisisaclassactionagainst DefendantUItaSalon, Cosmetics & Fragrance, Inc.
(“Ulta”)forfalseandmisleadingemailmarketing.

2. Ulta sends marketing emails to Washington consumers which contain false or
misleading information in the subject lines. For example, Ulta sends emails with subject lines
informingtherecipientthattherecipientis gettinga “free” gift. Inreality, however, the giftis
entirelyandcompletelycontingentontherecipientmakingaminimumpurchase.

3. The fact that such “free gift” statements are false and misleading has been
recognized by the Federal Trade Commission, which directs that sellers should not make
representations that a product can be obtained for “free” unless “all the terms, conditions and
obligationsuponwhichreceiptandretentionofthe‘ Free’itemarecontingent[are]setforthclearly
andconspicuously attheoutsetoftheoffersoastoleavenoreasonableprobabilitythattheterms
ofthe offer might be misunderstood.” 16 C.F.R. § 251(c) (emphasis added) (also stating that

“disclosureofthetermsoftheoffersetforthinafootnoteofanadvertisementtowhichreference

is made by an asterisk or other symbol placed next to the offer, is not regarded as making

disclosureattheoutset.”)(emphasisadded);  seealsoBrownv.OldNavy, LLC,567P.3d38,567
P.3d38(2025)(recognizingthatemailswithfalseormisleadinginformationinthesubjectlines
violateWashington’sCommercialElectronicMailAct(“WCEMA”),RCW19.190.020,etseq
4. Ulta’spracticeofsendingemailsoffering‘“free”gifts,whenthegiftsarecontingent
on a minimum purchase, violates WCEMA, RCW 19.190.020(1)(b); and the Washington
ConsumerProtectionAct(“CPA”),RCW19.86,etseq
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5. Bysendingemailswithsubjectlinescontainingfalseandmisleadinginformation
toNamedPlaintiffandtheClass(definedbelow),UltaviolatesWCEMA.

6. Bysendingthesefalseandmisleadingemails,Ultaintendstodeceivetherecipients.

7. NamedPlaintiffbringsthisactionasaclassactiononbehalfofpersonsresidingin
Washington,towhomUItasentemailswithfalseand/ormisleadingsubjectlines.

8. NamedPlaintiff’srequestedreliefincludesanawardtoNamedPlaintiffandClass
membersofstatutoryandexemplarydamagesforeachillegalemail,andanawardofattorneys’
feesandcosts.

I1. JURISDICTION

0. The Superior Court of Washington has jurisdiction over this case under RCW
2.08.010andRCW4.92.090.
10.  TheSuperiorCourtof Washingtonhaspersonaljurisdictionover Defendant

pursuanttoRCW 4.28.185. ThisCourtmay exercisepersonaljurisdictionover Defendantasan
out-of-statedefendantbecausetheclaimsallegedinthiscivilactionarosefrom,withoutlimitation,
Defendant’stransmissionofcommercialelectronicmailmessagestoconsumerslocatedwithinthe
StateofWashington.Inaddition,Defendantintended,knew,orischargeablewiththeknowledge
thatitsout-of-stateactionswouldhaveaconsequencewithinWashington.

11.  VenueisproperinSnohomishCountySuperiorCourtbecause,atallrelevanttimes,
DefendanthastransactedbusinessinSnohomishCounty,includingwithoutlimitationbycausing
itswebsitetobeavailable to consumers in Snohomish County, selling products toresidents of
Snohomish County, and transmitting commercial electronic email messages to residents of
SnohomishCounty. RCW4.12.025.

III. PARTIES

CLASSACTIONCOMPLAINT -3 - Johannessen Law, PLLC
5400CaliforniaAve.SW,SuiteB
Seattle, WA98136
(206)594-0500



10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24

Case 2:25-cv-02500 Document 1-1  Filed 12/08/25 Page 5 of 26

12.  Named Plaintiff Cassaundra Maxwell (“Named Plaintiff Maxwell”’) is anatural
person currently residing at 12113 138th Avenue NE, Lake Stevens, WA 98258 (Snohomish
County).

13.  DefendantUltaisaDelawarecorporationdoingbusinesswithinthisstateandwith
itsprincipalplaceofbusinesslocatedat1 135 ArborDrive,Romeoville,IL60446.

IV. FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS

a. WCEMA prohibits initiating or conspiring to initiate the transmission of
commercial e-mails with false or misleading information in the subject lines.

14. WCEMA byitsterms,regulatesdeceptiveemailmarketing.

15. WCEMAwasenactedtoprotectconsumers’interestsinbeingfreefromdeceptive
commerciale-mails.

16. Aninjuryoccursunder WCEMAanytimeacommerciale-mailistransmittedthat
containsfalseormisleadinginformationinthesubjectline.

17.  Under WCEMA, it is irrelevant whether misleading commercial e-mails were
solicited.

18.  WCEMAcreatesanindependent, limited,privateofrightofaction,whichcanbe
assertedbyapersonwhoistherecipientofacommercialelectronicmailmessagewhichcontains
false ormisleading information in the subject line that has the capacity, tendency, or effect of
deceivingtherecipient.See,e.g., WCEMA,§19.190.020,et.seq.

19. Violationsof WCEM A createsstandalonecausesofaction.

b. Ulta initiated (or conspired to initiate) the transmission of commercial e-mails
with false or misleading subject lines.
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20. Ulta has initiated (or conspired to initiate) the transmission of commercial
electronic mail messages with false or misleading information in the subject lines to Named
PlaintiffandmembersoftheClass.

21. The emails were electronic mail messages, in that they were each an electronic
message sent to an electronic mail address; the emails from Ulta also referred to an internet
domain, whetherornotdisplayed,towhichanelectronicmailmessage canorcouldbesentor
delivered.

22.  Ultasenttheemailsforthepurposeofpromotingitsgoodsforsale.

23. TheemailsweresentatUlta’sdirectionandwereapprovedbyUlta.

24.  Ultaemailsfrequentlyadvertise*freegifts intheirsubjectlines.Forexample,Ulta
sentNamedPlaintiffanemailwithasubjectline,“5Xpointsinapp+FREE7PCdryshampoo
gift[.]”"However,inordertoobtainthegift, NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospend$70.Thus,
thegiftwasnot“free, ’andthesubjectlinewasfalseand/ormisleading Itisnotclearbyexamining
thesubjectlinethatthe“free”giftiscontingentupontherecipientmakinga$70purchase.Infact,
ifaconsumerseesthissubjectlineandmakesapurchaseof$69.99orless,theconsumerwillnot
receivethegift.

25.  Ultadesignsthesubjectlinesofitsmarketingemailstotapintoconsumerurgesto
obtain freeproducts,andindoingso, attemptstoinduce consumersintospendingmore money
thantheyotherwisewould.

26.  Andiftheconsumerchoosesnottosatisfytheminimumspend,thentheconsumer
willnot,infact,receivethepromisedfreegift,regardlessofwhetherornottheconsumermakesa

purchaseinanamountundertherequisiteminimumspend.
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27.  Ultaviolates WCEMA becausemany ofthestatementsintheemail subjectlines
arefalseand/ormisleading. Thefactsallegedbelowshowthetypesoffalseandmisleadingemail

subjectlinesUltasendstoconsumers.

c. Ulta sends commercial emails to consumers whom it knows, or has reason to
know, reside in Washington.

28.  UltasentthemisleadingcommercialemailstoemailaddressesthatUltaknew,or
hadreasontoknow, were heldby Washingtonresidents, eitherbecause (i) Ultahad aphysical
addressthatwasassociatedwiththerecipientbasedonpastpurchases;(ii)Ultahadaccesstodata
regardingtherecipientindicatingwhichstatetheyresidedin;or(iii)informationwasavailableto
Ultauponrequest from the registrant of the internet domain name contained in the recipient’s
electronicmailaddress.

29.  Ultaknowswheremanyofitscustomersresidethroughseveralmethods.

30. First,foranypersonthatplacesanorderonlinefromU]Ita,Ultaassociatesanemail
addresswithashippingaddressand/orbillingaddressforthatorder.

31. Second,Ultaencouragesonlineshopperstocreateonlineaccounts.Customerssave
information in their Ulta accounts along with their email address, such as shipping addresses,
billingaddresses,andphonenumbers.

32.  Third,discoverywillshowthatUltaemploysmethodstotracktheeffectivenessof
itsmarketingemailsandtoidentify consumersthatclickonlinkscontainedin Ulta’smarketing
emails,includingbyidentifyingtheirphysicallocation.DiscoverywillalsoshowthatUltagathers
informationsuchasgeocoordinatesand[PaddressesfromindividualswhoclickonlinksinUlta

commercialemails,andthatUltacanusesuchinformationtodeterminewhethertherecipientis

inWashington.
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33.  Fourth,Ultaalsoutilizescookies,pixels,andotheronlinetrackingtechnologiesto
identifyandlocatetheconsumersthatclickonlinkscontainedinUlta’smarketingemailsandthat
visititswebsite. Forexample, Ultahasinstalledthe Meta Pixel onits website, whichidentifies
websitevisitorsandcanidentifyspecificFacebookandInstagramusersthatvisittheUltawebsite;
informationthatcanbeassociatedwiththedatacollectedbyMetaonwherethatconsumerresides.
Ultaalsoemploystrackingtechnologies providedby Google, Inc., Yahoo! Inc.,FullStory, Inc.,
Twitter,Inc.,Microsoft,Inc.,andothersthatmaybeabletolocateconsumersinWashington.

34.  Fifth,discoverywillshowthatUltaemployssophisticatedthirdpartieswhocreate
profilesofcustomersandpotentialcustomers,includingtheiremailaddressandphysicallocation.

35. Lastly, Ultaalsoknew, should have known, orhad reasontoknow thatitsends
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marketingemailstoWashingtonresidentsduetoitslargepresenceinthestateandthevolumeof

marketingemailsitsendstopeoplearoundthecountry.

36.  Discoverywillshowthat,atthetimeitsenttheemailswithfalseandmisleading

subjectlines,Ultahadaccesstothedatadescribedaboveregardingthelocationofconsumersin

Washingtontowhomitsenttheemails.

d. Ulta initiated (or conspired to initiate) the transmission of illegal emails to

Named Plaintiff and members of the Class.

37.  Atall times relevant to this Complaint, Named Plaintiff Maxwell resided in

Washington.
38.  NamedPlaintiffreceivesemailsfromUItaatagmail.comemailaddress.
39, Ultaknows,orhasreasontoknow,thatNamedPlaintiffMaxwell’semailaddress

isheldbyaWashingtonresident. Named PlaintiffMaxwellhasanaccountwith Ultareflecting

her home address in the State of Washington. Named Plaintiff Maxwell has made several
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purchases(unrelatedtotheallegationscontainedwithinthisComplaint)fromtheUltawebsitethat
havebeendeliveredtoherhomeinWashingtonandhehasshoppedinUltastoresin Washington
withheraccount.

40.  UltasentthefollowingemailstoNamedPlaintiff(hereinafterthe”SubjectEmails”)
(emojisomitted):

a. OnSunday,January14,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith
thesubjectline: “FREE4APCgift&50%offBeautySteals.”"However,inorder
toobtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimum
of$40onskincareproducts. Therefore, the giftwasnot“free,”and thusthe
information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in
violationof WCEMA.

b. OnFriday,February9,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith
the subject line: “Choose from 3 FREE 26 PC gifts!” However, in order to
obtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimumof
$75.Therefore,thegiftwasnot“free,”andthustheinformationinthesubject
lineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.

c. OnSunday,June 16,2024, UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail with
thesubjectline: “5Xpoints+FREE 11 PCgift[]allforYOU!”However,in
order to obtain the “free” gift, Named Plaintiff would have had to spend a
minimumof$60. Therefore, thegiftwasnot“free,”and thustheinformation

inthe subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in violation of

WCEMA.
CLASSACTIONCOMPLAINT -8 - Johannessen Law, PLLC
5400CaliforniaAve.SW,SuiteB
Seattle, WA98136
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. OnMonday,June17,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith

thesubjectline: “FREE4PCDermalogicagiftforyou.”However,inorderto
obtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimumof
$50.Therefore,thegiftwasnot“free,”andthustheinformationinthesubject
lineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.
OnWednesday, June 19,2024, Ultasent Named Plaintiff Maxwell an email
withthesubjectline:“NewfromFenty+FREE4PCgift.”"However,inorder
toobtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimum
of$50.Therefore thegiftwasnot‘free, ’andthustheinformationinthesubject
lineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.
OnSunday,June23,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail with
thesubjectline: “Topoffersyoudon'twannamiss[]+FREEgift!”However,
inordertoobtainthe “free” gift, Named Plaintiffwouldhavehadtospenda
minimumof$60. Therefore, thegiftwasnot“free,”and thustheinformation
inthe subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in violation of

WCEMA.

. OnWednesday, June 26,2024, Ultasent Named PlaintiffMaxwell an email

withthesubjectline:“FREE4PCBumbleandbumblegift.”"However,inorder
toobtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimum
of$50.Therefore thegiftwasnot “free, ’andthustheinformationinthesubject

lineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.

. OnWednesday, June 26,2024, Ultasent Named PlaintiffMaxwell an email

withthesubjectline: “FREE4 PC SoldeJaneirogift.” However,inorderto

CLASSACTIONCOMPLAINT -9 - Johannessen Law, PLLC
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obtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimumof
$65.Therefore,thegiftwasnot“free,”andthustheinformationinthesubject
lineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.
OnFriday,June28,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwiththe
subjectline:“HUGEdeals+FREE13PCgiftformembers.”’However,inorder
toobtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimum
0f$90.Therefore thegiftwasnot “free, ’andthustheinformationinthesubject
lineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.
OnSaturday,June29,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith
thesubjectline:“Foryou:FREEgiftnewdrops&exclusivebeauty.”However,
inordertoobtainthe “free” gift, Named Plaintiffwouldhavehadtospenda
minimumof$90. Therefore, thegiftwasnot“free,”and thustheinformation
inthe subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in violation of

WCEMA.

. OnSunday,June30,2024, UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail with

thesubjectline: “FREE3 PC fullsize gift from The Ordinary.” However, in
order to obtain the “free” gift, Named Plaintiff would have had to spend a
minimumof$50. Therefore, thegiftwasnot“free,”and thustheinformation
inthe subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in violation of
WCEMA.
OnWednesday,July3,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith
thesubjectline:“Upto$200ff+FREESPCLancomegift.”However,inorder

toobtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimum

CLASSACTIONCOMPLAINT -10 - Johannessen Law, PLLC
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of$50.Therefore thegiftwasnot“free, ’andthustheinformationinthesubject

lineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.

. OnThursday,July4,2024, UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail with

thesubjectline:“Cuethefireworks[[FREE12PCgiftisinside! "However,in

order to obtain the “free” gift, Named Plaintiff would have had to spend a
minimumof$60. Therefore, thegiftwasnot*“free,”and thustheinformation
inthe subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in violation of

WCEMA.

. OnMonday,July8,2024 UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwiththe

subjectline:“FREE4PCClarinsgift+2 Xpoints.”However,inordertoobtain
the““free” gift, NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimumof$50.
Therefore, thegiftwasnot“free,”’andthustheinformationinthesubjectline

ofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.

. OnFriday,July12,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwiththe

subjectline: “10%OFF+FREE 12PCgift+ TWOmoredaysof DEALS!”
However,inordertoobtainthe*“free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadto
spend a minimum of $90. Therefore, the gift was not “free,” and thus the

information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in

violationof WCEMA.

. OnSunday,July 14,2024, UltasentNamed PlaintiffMaxwellanemail with

thesubjectline: “FREE4PCShiseidogift+10%off!”However,inorderto

obtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimumof

CLASSACTIONCOMPLAINT -11 - Johannessen Law, PLLC
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$50.Therefore,thegiftwasnot“free,”andthustheinformationinthesubject

lineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.

q. OnMonday,July15,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith

the subject line: “Choose your FREE clean makeup gift from PUR or Jane

Iredale.” However, in order to obtain the “free” gift, Named Plaintiff would

havehadtospendaminimumof$60. Therefore, thegiftwasnot“free,”and

thus the information in the subject line of this email was false and/or

misleading,inviolationof WCEMA.

r. OnTuesday,July16,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith

thesubjectline: “APRIMEdeal [[FREEgifts+10%off+FREEshipping.”

However,inordertoobtainthe*“free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadto

spend a minimum of $70. Therefore, the gift was not “free,” and thus the

information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in

violationof WCEMA.

s. OnWednesday,July 17,2024, Ultasent Named Plaintiff Maxwell an email

withthesubjectline: “FREE4PCTartegiftinside[ Jand10%off!”However,

inordertoobtainthe“free” gift, Named Plaintiffwouldhavehadtospenda

minimumof$50. Therefore, thegiftwasnot“free,”and thustheinformation

inthe subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in violation of

WCEMA.

t.  OnWednesday, July 17,2024, Ultasent Named Plaintiff Maxwell an email

withthesubjectline: “It’sPRIMEtime [] FREESPCLiveTintedgift+10%

off.”However,inordertoobtainthe“free” gift, NamedPlaintiffwouldhave
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hadtospendaminimumof$60.Therefore,thegiftwasnot“free,’andthusthe
information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in

violationof WCEMA.

. OnThursday,July18,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith

thesubjectline: “FREE20PCgift foryou+everythingyouneed forrush.”
However,inordertoobtainthe*“free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadto
spend a minimum of $80. Therefore, the gift was not “free,” and thus the
information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in

violationof WCEMA.

. OnFriday,July19,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwiththe

subject line: “All the things: FREE gift+10% OFF.” However, in order to
obtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimumof
$80.Therefore,thegiftwasnot“free,”andthustheinformationinthesubject

lineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.

. OnMonday,July22,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith

thesubjectline: “FREE3 PCBriogeogiftis YOURS.” However,inorderto
obtainthe*“free”gift, NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimumof.
Therefore, thegiftwasnot*“free,”andthustheinformationinthesubjectline

ofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.

. OnTuesday,July23,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith
the subject line: “Up to 50% off + FREE gifts [] Ready, Set for School!”

However,inordertoobtainthe*“free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadto

spend a minimum of $50. Therefore, the gift was not “free,” and thus the
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aa.

bb.

information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in
violationof WCEMA.

On Wednesday, July 24,2024, Ultasent Named Plaintiff Maxwell an email
withthesubjectline:“FREE11PCgifttoprepforbacktoschool.”However,
inordertoobtainthe“free” gift, Named Plaintiffwouldhavehadtospenda
minimumof$50. Therefore, thegiftwasnot“free,”and thustheinformation
inthe subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in violation of
WCEMA.
OnMonday,July29,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith
thesubjectline: “CelebrateNational LipstickDaywithaFREESPCgift+up
t0$200ff.”However,inordertoobtainthe “free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwould
havehadtospendaminimumof$60. Therefore, thegiftwasnot“free,”and
thus the information in the subject line of this email was false and/or
misleading,inviolationof WCEMA.

On Wednesday, July 31,2024, Ultasent Named Plaintiff Maxwell an email
with the subject line: “FREE deluxe 4 PC Buxom gift limited time only!”
However,inordertoobtainthe*“free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadto
spend a minimum of $50. Therefore, the gift was not “free,” and thus the
information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in
violationof WCEMA.
OnThursday,Augustl,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith
thesubjectline: “FREE 12PCgift+5Xpoints.” However,inordertoobtain

the““free” gift, NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimumof$80.
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CC.

dd.

ccC.

ff.

Therefore, thegiftwasnot*“free,”’andthustheinformationinthesubjectline
ofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.
OnFriday,August2,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith
thesubjectline: “FREE9PCfragrancegift+5XpointsonCliniqueHappy!”
However,inordertoobtainthe“free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadto
spend a minimum of $65. Therefore, the gift was not “free,” and thus the
information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in
violationof WCEMA.
OnSunday,August4,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith
thesubjectline:“getaFREE4PCgift+lipgloss-limitedtimeonly!”"However,
inordertoobtainthe “free” gift, Named Plaintiffwouldhavehadtospenda
minimumof$65. Therefore, thegiftwasnot“free,”and thustheinformation
inthe subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in violation of
WCEMA.

OnWednesday, August7,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail
withthesubjectline:“FREE4PCLauraMerciergiftinside.”However,inorder
toobtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimum
of$60.Therefore thegiftwasnot“‘free, ’andthustheinformationinthesubject
lineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.
OnWednesday, August7,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail
withthesubjectline:“FREEBubbleskincare?Y ESWAY .”However,inorder

toobtainthe““free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimum
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ge.

hh.

ii.

3

of$50.Therefore thegiftwasnot “free, ’andthustheinformationinthesubject
lineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.
OnFriday,August9,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith
thesubjectline:“FREE19PCgift(a$95value!).”However,inordertoobtain
the*“free”’gift, NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendaminimumof$75on
afragrance. Therefore,thegiftwasnot“free,”andthustheinformationinthe
subjectlineofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationofWCEMA.
On Saturday, August 17,2024, Ultasent Named Plaintiff Maxwell an email
withthe subjectline: “Foryou: $10 OFF +FREE 19 PC gift.” However, in
order to obtain the “free” gift, Named Plaintiff would have had to spend a
minimumof$75onafragrance. Therefore,thegiftwasnot“free, ’andthusthe
information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in
violationof WCEMA.

OnSunday,September29,2024, UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail
withthesubjectline:“FREE15PCgift+upto40%offtsooomuchnewness.”
However,inordertoobtainthe“free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadto
spend a minimum of $75. Therefore, the gift was not “free,” and thus the
information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in
violationof WCEMA.
OnSunday,November10,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail
withthesubjectline: “Upto40%off+FREE24PCGIFT+upto$20off.”
However,inordertoobtainthe“free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadto

spend a minimum of $90. Therefore, the gift was not “free,” and thus the
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information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in
violationof WCEMA.

kk. OnMonday, December2,2024, UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail
withthesubjectline:“LASTCHANCE:CyberMondaydeals+$100ff+FREE
gift!”However,inordertoobtainthe*“free”gift, NamedPlaintiffwouldhave
hadtospendaminimumof$90.Additionally,inordertogetthepromised$10
off,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadtospendatleast$50onotherproducts..
Therefore, thegiftwasnot*“free,”’andthustheinformationinthesubjectline
ofthisemailwasfalseand/ormisleading,inviolationof WCEMA.

1. OnFriday,December 13,2024, UltasentNamed PlaintiffMaxwellanemail
withthesubjectline: “FREE gift+upto$20OFF+ourholiday gift guide.”
However,inordertoobtainthe*“free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadto
spend a minimum of $85. Therefore, the gift was not “free,” and thus the
information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in
violationof WCEMA.

mm. OnSunday,March9,2025, Ultasent Named PlaintiffMaxwell an email
with the subject line: “5X points in app + FREE 7 PC dry shampoo gift.”
However,inordertoobtainthe*“free”gift,NamedPlaintiffwouldhavehadto
spend a minimum of $70. Therefore, the gift was not “free,” and thus the
information in the subject line of this email was false and/or misleading, in
violationof WCEMA.

41. TheemailsidentifiedinParagraph40(a)through(mm)arehereinafterreferredto

asthe“SubjectEmails.”
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42. Ulta has also sent Named Plaintiff Maxwell emails that do not run afoul of

WCEMA . .Forexample:

a.

OnSunday,Augustl 1,2024,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith

thesubjectline:“FREE19PCgift ~ with select $75 fragrance purchase?lIt’s

yours!”’(Emphasisadded).Thisisanexampleofasubjectlinethatdoesnotrun
afoulof WCEMA, astheinformationinthesubjectlinedisclosesallmaterial
conditionsofthe“free”giftoffer.
OnMonday,September22,2025,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail

withthesubjectline: “FREE 7PCMorphe gift with $60 online purchase/.]

Seedetails.(Emphasisadded).“Thisisanexampleofasubjectlinethatdoes
notrunafoul of WCEMA, astheinformationinthesubjectlinedisclosesall
materialconditionsofthe“free”giftoffer.

OnSunday,September28,2025, UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail

withthesubjectline:“TrySajewiththisFREESPCgift with select $50 online

purchase!Seedetails.”(Emphasisadded). Thisisanexampleofasubjectline
that does not run afoul of WCEMA, as the information in the subject line
disclosesallmaterialconditionsofthe‘“free”giftoffer.
OnTuesday,September30,2025,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail

with the subject line: “FREE 3 PC Valentino fragrance gift with your $60

qualifying online purchase.” (Emphasis added). This is an example of a

subjectlinethatdoesnotrunafoulofWCEMA jastheinformationinthesubject

linedisclosesallmaterialconditionsofthe*freegiftoffer.
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e. OnWednesday,October1,2025,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemail
withthesubjectline:*“NationalHairDayChooseyourFREEhaircaregift with

select $50 online purchaseSeedetails.”(Emphasisadded).Thisisanexample

ofasubjectlinethatdoesnotrunafoulof WCEMA ,astheinformationinthe
subjectlinedisclosesallmaterialconditionsofthe*“free”giftoffer.
f.  OnThursday, October2,2025, Ultasent Named PlaintiffMaxwell an email

with the subject line: “get a FREE makeup gift with select $50 online

purchase!Seedetails.”(Emphasisadded). Thisisanexampleofasubjectline
that does not run afoul of WCEMA, as the information in the subject line
disclosesallmaterialconditionsofthe‘“free”giftoffer.

g. OnFriday,October3,2025,UltasentNamedPlaintiffMaxwellanemailwith

thesubjectline:“FREE11PCbeautybag with select $85 online purchase[]

Choosefrom3!Seedetails.”(Emphasisadded).Thisisanexampleofasubject
linethatdoesnotrunafoulof WCEMA ,astheinformationinthesubjectline
disclosesallmaterialconditionsofthe‘“free”giftoffer.
43.  Ulta sent the Subject Emails to Named Plaintiff Maxwell for the purpose of
promotingUlta *sgoodsforsale.
44.  Ulta initiated the transmission or conspired to initiate the transmission of the
SubjectEmailstoNamedPlaintiffMaxwell.
45. As shown in Paragraph 40(a) through (mm) Named Plaintiff has identified 39
emailswithfalseormisleadingsubjectlinessenttoNamedPlaintiffby Ulta.
46. TheseemailsweresentbetweenJanuary14,2025andMarch9,2025 showingthat

Ultaengagedinthisconductthroughouttherelevanttimeperiod
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V. CLASS ACTION ALLEGATIONS

47. NamedPlaintiffbringsthisaction,bothindividuallyandasaclassaction,onbehalf
ofsimilarlysituatedrecipientsofcommercialelectronicmailsentby UltapursuanttoCR23and

seektorepresentthefollowingClass,definedas:

All Washington residents to whom Ulta sent, within four
years before the date of the filing of this complaint until
the date of trial, an email with a subject line that states
or implies that the recipient of the email will be given a
free product.

ExcludedfromtheClassareDefendant,aswellasDefendant’saffiliates,employees,officersand
directors,andtheJudgetowhomthiscaseisassigned.

48. TheClass,asdefinedabove, isidentifiable. NamedPlaintiff isamemberofthe
Class.

49, TheClassconsists,ataminimum,of’50consumers and isthussonumerousthat
joinderofallmembersisclearlyimpracticable.

50.  TherearequestionsoflawandfactwhicharenotonlycommontotheClass,but
whichpredominateoveranyquestionsaffectingonlyindividualmembersoftheClass.

51. Withrespecttothe Class, thecommonandpredominatingquestionsinclude, but
arenotlimitedto:

(a) Whether the emails Ulta sent to the Class  are subject to WCEMA §
19.190.010,etseq.;

(b) Whetherthesubjectlinesofemailssentby Ulta containfalseormisleading

information,;
CLASSACTIONCOMPLAINT -20 - Johannessen Law, PLLC
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() Whether Ulta initiated the transmission or conspired to initiate the
transmission of commercial electronic mail messages to Class Members
locatedwithinWashingtonState;and

(d) ThenatureandextentofClass-wideinjuryanddamages.

52.  ClaimsofNamedPlaintiffaretypical oftheclaimsoftherespectivemembersof
theproposedClassandarebasedonandariseoutofsimilarfactsconstitutingthewrongfulconduct
ofDefendant.

53.  Named Plaintiff will fairly and adequately protect the interests of the proposed
Class.

54.  NamedPlaintiffiscommittedtovigorouslylitigatingthismatter.

55.  Further,Named Plaintiffhas secured counsel experienced in handling consumer
classactionsandcomplexconsumerlitigation.

56.  NeitherNamedPlaintiffnorundersignedcounselhaveanyinterests whichmight
causethemnottovigorouslypursuethisclaim.

57. Commongquestionsoflawandfactenumeratedabovepredominateoverquestions
affectingonlyindividualmembersoftheClass.

58.  Aclassaction is the superior method for fair and efficient adjudication of the
controversy.

59.  The likelihood that individual members of the proposed Class will prosecute
separateactionsisremoteduetothetimeandexpensenecessarytoconductsuchlitigation.

60.  The likelihood that individual members of the proposed Class will prosecute

separateactionsisremotealsobecauseeachindividualclaiminvolvesarelativelysmallamount.
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61.  CounselforNamedPlaintiffandtheproposedClass isexperiencedinclassactions

andforeseeslittledifficultyinthemanagementofthiscaseasaclassaction.

VI.  CAUSE OF ACTION

COUNT ONE
(VIOLATIONSOFWASHINGTON’SCOMMERCIAL
ELECTRONICMAILACT,RCW19.190ETSEQ.)
(WASHINGTONCLASS)

62.  NamedPlaintiffre-allegesandincorporates  byreferencetheallegationssetforth
herein,andfurtheralleges:

63. WCEMA prohibitsany“person,”asthattermisdefinedinRCW19.190.010(11),
frominitiatingorconspiringtoinitiatethetransmissionofacommercialelectronicmailmessage
fromacomputerlocatedinWashingtonortoanelectronicmailaddressthatthesenderknows,or
hasreasontoknow,isheldbyaWashingtonresidentthatcontainsfalseormisleadinginformation
inthesubjectline.

64. Ulta isa“person”withinthemeaningoftheCEMA,RCW§19.190.010(11).

65.  Ulta initiated thetransmissionor conspiredtoinitiate the transmission ofone or
morecommercialelectronicmailmessagestoNamedPlaintiffandmembersoftheproposedClass.

66.  TheSubjectEmailscontainedfalseormisleadinginformationinthesubjectlines
inthewaysdescribedinParagraph40(a)through(mm).

67. UnderWCEMA itisirrelevantwhethertheaforementionedemails weresolicited.

68.  Ulta’ssendingofeachSubjectEmail isadiscreteviolationof WCEMA.

69. Ulta’sactsandomissionsviolated WCEMA§19.190.020(1)(b).

COUNT TWO
(PERSEVIOLATION OF WASHINGTON’S
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CONSUMER PROTECTION ACT, RCW 19.86 ETSEQ.)

(WASHINGTONCLASS)
70.  NamedPlaintiffre-allegesandincorporatesbyreferencetheallegationsset forth
herein,andfurtheralleges:
71.  NamedPlaintiffandmembersoftheClassare“persons”withinthemeaningofthe

CPA,RCW19.86.010(1).

72.  Ultaviolated WCEMAbyinitiatingorconspiringtoinitiatethetransmissionofa
commercialelectronicmailmessagestoNamedPlaintiffandmembersofthe Classthatcontain
falseormisleadinginformationinthesubjectline.

73.  Aviolation of WCEMA is a “perse” violation of the Washington CPA, RCW
19.86.010, etseq .;RCW 19.190.030. SeeBrownv.OldNavy, LLC,4Wn.3d580,567P.3d38
(2025).

74.  AviolationoftheCEMAestablishesallfiveelementsofWashington’sConsumer
ProtectionActasamatteroflaw.

75.  Ulta’sviolationsoftheCEMAareunfairordeceptiveactsorpracticesthatoccur
intradeorcommerceundertheCPA.RCW19.190.100.

76.  Ulta’sunfairordeceptiveactsorpracticesvitallyaffectthepublicinterestandthus
impactthepublicinterestforpurposesofapplyingtheCPA.RCW19.190.100.

77. Pursuant to RCW 19.19.040(1), damages to each recipient of a commercial
electronic mail message sent in violation of the CEMA are the greater of $500 for each such
messageoractualdamages, whichestablishestheinjuryandcausationelementsofaCPAclai
asamatteroflaw.

78. Asaresultof Ulta’sactsandomissions, NamedPlaintiffand Classmembersare

entitledto$500instatutorydamagesforeachandeveryemailthatviolatessWCEMA.
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79.  UltaengagedinapatternandpracticeofviolatingWCEMA.

80. Asaresultof Ulta’sactsandomissions,NamedPlaintiffandmembersoftheClass
areentitledto$500instatutorydamagesforeachandeveryemailthatviolatesthe WCEMA.The
fullamountofdamageswillbeprovenattrial.

81.  NamedPlaintiffandmembersofthe Classareentitledtorecoveractualdamages
and treble damages, together with reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs, pursuant to RCW §

19.86.090.
PRAYER FOR RELIEF

WHEREFORE,NamedPlaintiffrespectfullypraysforjudgmentasfollows:

A. Anorderassumingjurisdictionofthiscase;

B. anordercertifyingtheClass;

C. anorder appointing Named Plaintiff Maxwell asrepresentative of the Class and
undersignedcounselasClasscounselfortheClass;

D. anorderawardingstatutorydamageswhereapplicable; !
anawardofattorneys’fees,pursuanttoRCW§19.86.090;

F. an award of pre-judgment and post-judgment interest on all sums awarded to
NamedPlaintiffandthemembersoftheproposedClass;and

G. awardsuchotherreliefasthecourtdeemsappropriate.

VII. DEMAND FOR JURY TRIAL

NamedPlaintiffdemandsatrialbyjuryonallissuessotriable.

"NamedPlaintiffstatesthatherindividualclaimforrelieftotals$ 19,500(39emailsx$500
=$19,500).
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Respectfullysubmitted,
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ElleryJo ‘anﬁessen,Esq.
Johannessen Law, PLLC
5400CaliforniaAve.SW,SuiteB
Seattle, WA98136
(206)594-0500
ellery@eaj-law.com

/s/ Jeffrey C. Toppe

JeffreyC.Toppe,Esq.(prohacviceforthcoming)
The Toppe Firm, LLC
49000’HearAvenue,Ste.100
NorthCharleston,SC29405
(323)909-2011
jct@toppefirm.com

Attorneys for Named Plaintiff
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